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  have reached a stipulation to enter the following exhibit 1 

  numbers into evidence.  They are Exhibit Nos. 238, 239, 239A, 2 

  240, 241, 241A, 242, 243, 243A, 244, 245, 245A, 246.  And I 3 

  believe that's the last one. 4 

           And, just so the record can reflect, those are records 5 

  from the Bank of America for, uh, bank accounts in the name of 6 

  Irwin Schiff and Freedom Books. 7 

           THE COURT:  So stipulate? 8 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Th, 246BaulEordsr Honoroks. 

           MBOWERSLLINo problemEordsr Honoroks. 7 

           THE COURTMrokin Sch?ks. 7 

           MSCHIFFLLINo objaullatoks. 

           MLEVENTHALLLIYesEordsr Honoroks. 

           MSCHIFFLLIYesEordsr Honoroks. 
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                   DIRECT EXAMINATION (Continued) 1 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 2 

  Q.  Good morning, Ms. Desgrosellier. 3 

  A.  Good morning. 4 

  Q.  When we were taking yesterday, I asked you a question.  I'm 5 

  not sure if we actually got the answer. 6 

           When is the last time you spoke with your-2.Er?r. 
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  one? 1 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  I got it. 2 

           MR. BOWERS:  We got one, your Honor -- 3 
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           MR. IGNALL:  Does that satisfy the foundation, your 1 

  Honor? 2 

           THE COURT:  It does. 3 

           MR. IGNALL:  All right.  Thank you. 4 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 5 



 



 1
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           THE WITNESS:  Yeah, received, yes. 1 

           MR. IGNALL:  All right.  No further questions, your 2 

  Honor.  Thank youHE WITNESS:  Yeah,8b.24 ihoIwOURT8 TOkay268 Td
(  Honor.  4ved, yes. )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
(1 )Tj
2.24 -2.268 T
2.24 -2., MITNDesgrosellier268 Td
(  Honor.  5ved, yes. )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
(1 )Tj
2.24CRIST.26I Td
t.  d
(2 , before I begin, I have an68 Td
(  Honor.  6hank youHE WITNESS:  Yeissue that we need to discuss with the Ct. t at sidebar268 Td
(  Honor.  7ved, yes. )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
(1 )Tj
ihoIwOURT8 TOkay268 Td
(  Honor.  8hank youHE WITNESS:  Yeah,8b.24    (Sidebar conference was held as follows:)68 Td
(  Honor.  9ved, yes. )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
(1 )Tj
2.24CRIST.26I TdUm, Judge, I have some concern)Tj
2ere68 Td
( 841h, recei0ved, ye841h)Tj
-2.24 0 Twere6a numbNALof checkrigum, from the account that we just68 Td
( 841h, recei1ved, ye841h)Tj
NESS:  Ye Alpulated to have come in, um, um, that we have just6went68 Td
( 841h, recei2ved, ye841h)Tj
-2.24 0 Tthrough and are6not in the exhibits that we've just6perused.68 Td
( 841h, recei3ved, ye841h)Tj
-2.24 0 TSpecifically, there's6a check from AprilTT0t   2000, Check 8 Td
( 841h, recei4ved, ye841h)Tj
NESS:  YeNo. Tm45; anoIGNALcheck from AprilTT9t   2000, Check No. Tm73; 8 Td
( 841h, recei5ved, ye841h)Tj
-2.24 0 TanoIGNALcheck on AprilT24t   2000, Check No. Tm79)TjEach oneLof 8 Td
( 841h, recei6ved, ye841h)Tj
NESS:  Yethose checkr are6madeLout to an6indiLCheck 8 Td
( 841h bys thanam841h,Perry, recei6ved, ye841h7Tj
-2.24 0 TanoIGNALchecOshiro, O-s-h-i-r-oh, recei3ved, ye841h8Tj
-2.24 0 TanoIGNALcheccccccccccWwent68e havea good-fat atbe  Hf8 Tr checkrigum,  recei3ved, ye841h9Tj
NESS:  Yethose checkrreas fuof If I'mexhibmis
.ToneLo TrecOshias foeck 8 Td
( 841,  recei3ved, ye821h)Tj
-2.24 0 Twere6a num just6 foferntthe coibits tStve igumNevada versum thhecSt ira1,  recei3ved, ye821h)Tj
NESS:  Ye ere6a numRescu Murphys:)a drug dealkri justsupple coon oibito Mr.68e ha,  recei3ved, ye821h)Tj
-2.24 0 Tthose checT coBin No.e, I hI alse in, uaddi  No841inf8 ma  Noi justh as fo,  recei3ved, ye821h to Ms. thhec,  recei3ved, ye821h
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           I would like to have those checks because I don't have 1 

  anything to ask her on as it relates to them other than my own 2 

  notations. 3 

           MR. IGNALL:  Well -- I'm sorry, your Honor -- there are 4 
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           MR. CRISTALLI:  No. 1 

           THE COURT:  No, you can't. 2 

           MR. BOWERS:  You can refresh her recollection with it, 3 

  Irwin. 4 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  No, you actually can't. 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Pardon me? 6 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  You cannot use the police report. 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  But didn't you have the police report -- 8 

           MR. IGNALL:  That's not -- 9 

           THE COURT:  Yeah. 10 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Well, I don't know.  I'm just -- 11 

           MR. BOWERS:  Tell him about that. 12 

           THE COURT:  It's the rule of evidecwB7QTT4
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  methamphetamine? 1 



 1891

  A.  Correct. 

 QA. You know Agent SteinerA. True?. 

  A. Who?. 

 QA. Agent SteinerA. 

  A. YesA. 

 QA. YOf course I do. 

 QA. DCandrs 4poit SA.o out to us. 

 QA dure enemanpingency ofothison the v841rrect.   841rrect.   841rrect.   841rrect.   841rrect. 
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  could tell you exactly what I told him, in my words -- 1 

  Q.  Well, did -- 2 

  A.  -- what I told him. 3 1 
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  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 1 

  Q.  Okay.  Let's go on a little bit then. 2 

           Um, during the conversation you had with Agent Steiner, 3 
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  person myself to take care of an issue.  Yes. 1 

  Q.  Okay.  But you asked them for assisdn0 with64 gardlf t. 

gettingof aIRS64 fund back; correct?  And t you asked them fo--t. 
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  A.  Are you kidding? 1 

  Q.  No.  I'm actually not kidding. 2 

           THE COURT:  Answer just yes or no. 3 

           THE WITNESS:  Uh, no. 4 

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 5 

  Q.  Okay.  Did you tell the Government that they should be 6 

  buying your testimony and the fact -- and the fact that your 7 

  mother's not buying your testimony surprises you?  Did you say 8 

  that? 9 
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  A.  Not in those exact words, no. 1 

  Q.  Okay.  So you began working at Freedom Books in 1998; 2 

  correct? 3 

  A.  Yes, sir.  Yes, sir. 4 

  Q.  You were actually at, uh, Freedom Books before your mom 5 

  began volunteering fotrt2o
t.24 ,oal;  correct? 

  A. Nno. 

  Q.  Okay.  So your momwasn volunteering fotrt2o
t.24 before yo. 

 tBoo4 ,o employg at Freedom Bookt? 

  A.  Yeo. 01 

  Q.  Okay. Um, bute yo.woulde aknowledge,.woulde yo.noat,ma'am,  11 

 th ats,o wasn volunteering fotrt2o
t.2?  21 

  A. Nno. S,o wasnpayringb akt, uh,a check th atIrw inhad written  31 

 efog fotefog fotrento. 41 

  Q. Ma'am, didn'te yo.testify yesterday on dirrece exmination  51 

 th at your m ,oa wasn vo- --s iitiually volunteering fotrt2o
t.24 61 

  at Freedom Bookt? 71 
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  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 1 

  Q.  -- saying today? 2 
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  A.  Did I not? 1 

  Q.  I don'
-lieve you did Q.But the64 cord speaks for itself.t? 

  A.Okay.t? 1 1 4kay.t? 
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  Q.  -- correct? 1 

  A.  -- it's not. 
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  Q.  -- so far? 1 

  A.  Oh.  Um, yes, there was one check that was written to my 2 
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           Does the witness have that? 1 

              (Document displayed in open court.) 2 

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 3 

  Q.  Uh, can you see that? 4 

  A.  Yeah, I can see it right here on the monitor.  Yeah. 5 

  Q.  Do you recognize that check? 6 

           MR. IGNALL:  Your Honor, this -- this is part of the 7 

  larger Bank of America exhibits.  It's not scanned and it's not 8 

  part of the exhibit books. 9 

           THE COURT:  Oh.  Thank you. 10 

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 11 

  Q.  Do you see that check there? 12 

  A.  Yes, I do. 13 

  Q.  It's written by you, isn't it? 14 

  A.  Yes, it is. 15 

  Q.  It's Irwin's signature stamp, isn't it? 16 

  A.  Yes, it is. 17 

  Q.  And it's made out for Perry Oshiro; correct? 18 

  A.  That's correct. 19 

  Q.  Okay. 20 

              (Document displayed in open court.) 21 

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 22 

  Q.  Do you see this check? 23 

  A.  Yes. 24 

  Q.  It's also made out by you; correct?25 
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  A.  Yes. 1 





 1917

  Q.  Okay. 1 

              (Document displayed in open court.) 2 

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 3 

  Q.  And the next one is -- 4 

  A.  There were three I thought. 5 

  Q.  -- next one's 2673, check number; correct? 6 

  A.  Correct. 7 

  Q.  Dated April 19th, 2000; right? 8 

  A.  Yep. 9 

  Q.  To Perry Oshiro; right?   A.  There were Te  Q.  A
   .24 -2.273 TdIn Q.  amou(Dof $519th, 2000; right?   A.  There were Te  Q.  A
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           Um, you said that for whatever reason -- I don't think 1 



 1921

              (Pause in the proceedings.) 1 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  I'll get back to that. 2 

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 3 

  Q.  I just found something here that I want to go over it with 4 

  you again. 5 

           So with regard to, um, you stating that your mom didn't 6 

  initially volunteer her -- her time, you said that that's not 7 

  what you said yesIday, correct,er itasidn'g that your motasot 
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 1924

  Q.  Poster. 1 

  A.  All right.  Big difference. 2 

           Um, her posters, no, not 20 to 50.  It all depended on 3 

  the poster and the bar and how many she did.  The smaller 4 

  posters were 15 to 20 bucks per poster, but they're 5 

  eight-and-a-half b7Ievence. 

  Q.Okayht.  bue dn't you testifyut atny shwouldow ke abounot 2. 

orto 20 buckaer post?2. 



 1



 1926

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 1 

  Q.  Okay.  Don't answer in the legal sentence. 2 



 1927

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 1 

  Q.  Well, you testified before a Grand Jury, didn't ya? 2 

           MR. IGNALL:  Yes.  But she made -- 3 

           THE COURT:  How do you use it for impeachment?  Got to 4 

  ask her -- 5 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  She -- she -- it's inconsistent with 6 

  her previous testimony. 7 

           THE COURT:  That -- well -- 8 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  She said she was -- she said she was 9 

  gone before there was any accusations of stealing by anybody and 10 

  she denied that there was an accusation of stealing -- 11 

           THE COURT:  Well, you mean -- 12 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  -- by somebody internally. 13 

           MR. IGNALL:  I think that mischaracterizes the 14 

  witnesses testimony. 15 

           THE COURT:  That's apples and oranges.  Two different 16 

  events. 17 

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 18 

  Q.  I think I understand the testimony.  Your testimony was the 19 

  first time you heard about the accusation with regard to 20 

  stealing from the till was when your mother banged on your 21 

  friend's door; correct? 22 

  A.  No.  Incorrect.  I did not say that. 23 

  Q.  You didn't just say that? 24 

  A.  No.25 
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           THE COURT:  Go ahead.  I think we're talking about two 1 

  different events.  You're talking about her being accused of 2 

  taking $46,000 -- 3 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Right. 4 

           THE COURT:  -- or some amount like that. 5 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Right. 6 
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  Q.  Right. 1 

           It concerned you because you -- you thought that the 2 

  first person they were gonna come and accuse was you -- 3 

  A.  Incorrect. 4 

  Q.  -- correct? 5 

  A.  No, no. 6 

           I wanted Irwin to know where his money was going 7 

  because he was saying -- at that time that's when we set up this 8 

  entire book that's already been entered into the exhibits right 9 

  here.  This is why we started this book originally for the 10 

  orders was because Irwin was concerned where all the money was 11 

  going from the daily walk-in orders because most of it required 12 

  cash.  So I brought it to his attention.  I said -- we started 13 

  to watch.  Irwin and I both watched Cheryl in the frooT Anted 

  IrwievbeeI sa, yes,rs becausn most on tm m watchethat thentet od 

  the y.od 
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  stealing, so... 1 

  Q.  Right. 2 

           And so, um, it's true, though, is it not, that you said 3 

  that, "Because I wasn't on SociacT.26c3 
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  notes? 1 

  A.  Um, sometimes they'll jot things down but not direct notes 2 

  or, you know, like writing every word, no. 3 

  Q.  No.  But they write something down. 4 

  A.  Sometimes and sometimes they don't. 5 

  Q.  Okay.  Do you -- did you ever write anything down from those 6 

  meetings? 7 
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  on behalf of him and other volunteers -- 1 

  A.  No. 2 

  Q.  -- him and his son -- 3 

  A.  Right -- 4 

  Q.  -- because he was -- 5 

  A.  -- for him and his son. 6 

  Q.  -- willing to accept checks -- 7 

  A.  Right. 8 

  Q.  -- and that that money was for Mr. Oshiro's -- 9 

  A.  Work -- 10 

  Q.  -- and his son's -- 11 

  A.  -- that he had done for Irwin. 12 

  Q.  -- volunteer services, not drugs? 13 

  A.  Right -- 14 

  Q.  Okay. 15 

  A.  -- right, yes. 16 

  Q.  Okay. 17 

  A.  Yes, yes. 18 

  Q.  Thank you. 19 

  A.  Yes, that's correct. 20 

           THE COURT:  Mr. Schiff. 21 

   22 

                          CROSS-EXAMINATION 23 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 24 

  Q.  Michelle, wasn't the reason that you had my checks and that25 
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  you could stamp it was that there were times when I was away for 1 

  three and four weeks at a time?  As a matter of fact -- 2 

           THE COURT:  Wait a minute. 3 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 4 

  Q.  -- in that month of -- 5 

           THE COURT:  Just one question -- 6 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I'm sorry. 7 
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           THE COURT:  -- or what? 1 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 2 

  Q.  The sjffic time t wh Aprilor en:  -r en:we:were talkingF: 

about-r en:you:were writingFthose checks Q.How many:  -how many:: 

weeks was I away forat? 

A Q.In Apriloof2.2687g.17-- 2000, andf2.26e checkrat? 

  QWell, don:youhave a.64collectionloofimebeting awaywhilen:yout? 

were orlking fofim,loofiyebeting away fofan extended periodlooft? 

A QUh, "extended"fimantingmorme t n a.(wee, Irwinrat? )Tj
841.24 0 Td05(2 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td
(  QYes  Q. rem,lfour
(week  Q.wo
(week  t? )Tj
841.24 0 Td15(2 )Tj841.24 -27368 Td
(A QNo, notgmorme t n t rem,lfour
(week, notgusually, no  t? )Tj
841.24 0 Td25(2 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td
Notg:  t? )Tj
841.24 0 Td35(2 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td
(  QWell, two
:  t? )Tj
841.24 0 Td45(2 )Tj841.24 -27368 Td
(A Q:  -rilenI
:  t? )Tj
841.24 0 Td55(2 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td
(  Q:  -weekrat? )Tj
841.24 0 Td65(2 )Tj841.24 -27368 Td
(A Q:  -orled thwer  t? )Tj
841.24 0 Td75(2 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td






 
 
 
Maybe two
(weeksifn:youhadgmorme t n on Theminare t whI t? )Tj
841.24 0 Td85(2 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td
setgupy fof:youin a.row, yek  t? )Tj
841.24 0 Td95(2 )Tj841.24 -27368 Td
(  QSohI  wasgoting roundfdotingheminarkrat? )Tj
841.24 0 T205(2 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td
A  QYes,n:you:wer  t? )Tj
841.24 0 T215(2 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td
(  QAnd, thwer fom,lbillsuhadgto getgpaid;fiyeemployeesuhadgto t? )Tj
841.24 0 T225(2 )Tj841.24 -27368 Td
getgpaid  QAnde t w'ks hyn:youhadgt  Thtampk  QIse t whcor64ctrat? 

A QUh, yeah  t? 

  QOkayA QUm, now, isn't itg:  now, :youtestjffede t w :yot?  







 1949

              (Discussion between Mr. Schiff and 1 

              Mr. Cristalli.) 
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  A.  Uh, not that I recall, Irwin. 1 

  Q.  I never took a -- did I ever take any money out of the 2 

  Freedom Foundation account? 3 

  A.  I did not have control of the Freedom Foundation account, 4 

  Irwin. 5 

  Q.  I thought you testified that -- 6 

  A.  No -- 7 

  Q.  -- you did. 8 

  A.  -- I did not.  I testified that I gave that account to 9 

  Charity because I could not handle more than two accounts and 10 

  there was a lot regarding -- 11 

  Q.  Also -- 12 

  A.  -- the Foundation account because it was considered a 13 

  nonprofit -- 14 

           THE COURT:  Hold on a minute. 15 

           "Charity" meaning -- 16 

           THE WITNESS:  Another person. 17 

           THE COURT:  -- a person -- 18 

           THE WITNESS:  Yes, Charity -- 19 

           THE COURT:  -- not a -- 20 

           THE WITNESS:  -- yes, was a person, yes. 21 12 

  Q.  Also -- 13 
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           MR. IGNALL:  Yes, your Honor. 1 

           MR. COTTNALIL:  Yes, your Honor. 
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           MR. CRISTALLI:  Uh-huh.  Broke my million-dollar pen. 1 

           THE COURT:  I got a government pen. 2 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  This is a -- Gary, is she doin' all 3 

  right, a little better. 4 

           MR. MODAFFERI:  She looks pretty good. 5 

           MR. IGNALL:  And I'm sorry.  Is the proposal that she'd 6 

  want to waive her right to be present for this witness? 7 

           MR. MODAFFERI:  She looks distraught, Judge.  She's 8 

  crying. 9 

           MR. IGNALL:  Do you want to do that?  I'm not sure... 10 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  What's the Court's position with regard 11 

  to that? 12 

           THE COURT:  I'd rather not do it.  But, you know -- 13 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  All right.  Well, we'll -- 14 

           MR. BOWERS:  Otherwise -- 15 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  We'll get her straight.  We'll get her 16 

  straight. 17 

           MR. MODAFFERI:  If we could just get some tissues. 18 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Tissues and stuff, yeah. 19 

           THE CLERK:  I have some tissues. 20 

           MR. IGNALL:  All right.  Your Honor -- 21 

           THE COURT:  Let's see what -- 22 

           MR. BOWERS:  Can I raise -- 23 

           THE COURT:  -- maybe the testimony kind of -- 24 

           MR. IGNALL:  Yeah, this is --25 



 1963

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Mellow out. 1 

           THE COURT:  -- take her mind off of it. 2 

           MR. IGNALL:  -- not gonna be that exciting. 3 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  No, it's not. 4 

           MR. IGNALL:  I didn't mean that. 5 

           MR. BOWERS:  Plus all the other -- 6 

           THE COURT:  I was watching the jury for sleepers. 7 

           MR. IGNALL:  Can I just raise one thing quickly?  I 8 

  don't know if we'll be able to -- I'm hoping to do this quickly. 9 

  Mr. Diamond is a bailiff over in -- 10 

           THE COURT:  Yes. 11 

           MR. IGNALL:  -- state court. 12 

           THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 13 

           MR. IGNALL:  If there's some way we can get him done 14 

  before the lunch break because he has no one to cover him for 15 

  this afternoon.  Hopefully we'll -- 16 

           THE COURT:  Yeah.  Okay. 17 

           MR. IGNALL:  If it's possible.  If it's not, it's not. 18 

           THE COURT:  Yeah.  Well, we'll go as long as we can. 19 

           MR. IGNALL:  Okay. 20 

           THE COURT:  Ready? 21 

           MR. IGNALL:  Yes.  Thank you. 22 

           THE COURT:  So let me know -- 23 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Okay.  Thank you, your Honor. 24 

           THE COURT:  If you want to readdress it.25 



 1964

              (Sidebar conference concluded and the 1 1 witness st4 0.  Sir,(1 )Tj
2.24 -2.263f3.913 -3.164 73cluded remain st4 0ang 4 0 raise y ur right h4 0. 1 testimony y u shall giv
(1 )Tj
2.24 -2.265f3.913 -3.164 Tdcluded in Td
(cause now pen0ang before Tdis e urt shall be Td
(truth,(1 )Tj
2.24 -2.266f3.913 -3.164 73cluded Td
(whole(truth,(4 0 noTding but Td
(truth,(so help y u God?(1 )Tj
2.24 -2.267f3.913 -3.164 Tdcluded and the )THE WITNESS:  I(will. 1 )Tj
2.24 -2.268f3.913 -3.164 73cluded and the )THE CLERK:  Please be seate0. 1 )Tj
2.24 -2.269f3.913 -3.164 Tdcluded and the )Please st4te
-2r Td
(record y ur full name(4 0 spell 1 )Tj
28414 -2.2680f3.913 8414164 Tdcluded y ur last name. 1 )Tj
28414 -2.2681f3.913 8414164 73cluded and the )THE WITNESS:  MatTd
m3 8T(n 0. Llast nam,. 1 )Tj
28414 -2.2620f3.913 8414164 TdcludedD-i-a-m-o-n-de. 1 )Tj
28414 -2.2630f3.913 8414164 Tdclu[ded )4645(164f]TJ
014164 73cDuded and the )TjjjjjjjjjjjjjL  ct64 TdcluoaAMOND
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  Q.  Where do you live, Mr. Diamond? 1 

  A.  In Las Vegas. 2 

  Q.  How long have you lived in Las Vegas? 3 

  A.  Eleven years. 4 

  Q.  What do you do here in Las Vegas? 5 

  A.  I'm a bailiff at the District Court. 6 

  Q.  And how long have you been there? 7 

  A.  Ten years. 8 

  Q.  Do you earn a salary as a bailiff in the District Court? 9 

  A.  Yes. 10 

  Q.  Do you get a Form W-2 at the end of the year? 11 

  A.  Yes. 12 

  Q.  All right.  Have you ever met -- have you ever heard of 13 

  someone named "Irwin Schiff"? 14 

  A.  Yes. 15 

  Q.  When did you first hear of Irwin Schiff? 16 

  A.  Back in the '60s. 17 

  Q.  How did that come about? 18 

  A.  He was on a television show, David Susskind, 19 

  S-u-s-s-k-i-n-d. 20 

  Q.  Since you moved to Las Vegas about 11d
(  A0 Td
(20 )Tj
2.oTj
-2.841 0 Td
(19 )Tj
2.841 -t-t-t-t-t-t-t-t-t-t )Tj
-2.841 0 Tdas Vegas  
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  Q.  Do you remember when? 1 

  A.  I would say '95/'96. 2 

  Q.  What was Mr. Schiff talking about on the radio? 3 

  A.  He was promoting a zero tax return program. 4 

  Q.  Was he promoting anything else on the radio show? 5 

  A.  I'm not sure I understand. 6 
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  your zero returns to -- to, uh, get a refund on your 1 
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  A.  Yes. 1 
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 1
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  listed at the bottom. 1 

           MR. BOWERS:  I think that's a fair objection. 2 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Pardon? 3 

           What is significant is the supporting documents to 4 

  support that deficiency, and they are not here. 5 

           MR. IGNALL:  Your Honor, we need not move that in. 6 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 7 

  Q.  Did you get a letter from the IRS saying that you had a 8 

  deficiency for 1999? 9 

  A.  Yes. 10 

  Q.  What did you do in response to getting that letter? 11 
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  returns, got responses from the IRS, went back to Freedom Books, 1 

  purchased more materials, and then was sold something else to 2 

  send to the IRS. 3 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Your Honor, the reason my question is 4 

  relevant, I wanna see on his 4340 how the government treated the 5 

  zero returns.  We won't know that unless we look at a 4340. 6 

           THE COURT:  Well, it -- 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Yeah.  I mean -- I mean, I don't want to 8 

  hold up the proceedings.  It's just a question.  They should be 9 

  able to get it. 10 
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 1





 1
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  hearing? 1 

  A.  Yes. 2 

  Q.  Who else was there? 3 

  A.  Two hearing officers from the IRS. 4 

  Q.  All right.  What happened at that hearing? 5 

  A.  We just -- we each had a tape recorder.  We taped -- we 6 

  taped the session.  And they introduced themselves; I introduced 7 

  myself. 8 

           MR. SCHIFF:  What was the answer?  I didn't hear the 9 

  answer. 10 

           THE COURT:  Why don't you go over there -- 
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           THE COURT:  It is received. 1 

           MR. IGNALL:  All right.  Thank you, your Honor. 2 

              (Government's Exhibit No. 149, received into 3 

              evidence.) 4
72I) 
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  interest on top of the tax you would have otherwise owed? 1 

  A.  Now? 2 

  Q.  Now. 3 

  A.  Nothing. 4 

  Q.  How much was it -- why is it nothing now? 5 

  A.  Because I pay my taxes. 6 

  Q.  All right.  Do you follow the Schiff program anymore? 7 

  A.  I abandoned it years ago. 8 

  Q.  Why was that? 9 

  A.  Didn't work. 10 

  Q.  All right.  Anyone tell you -- anyone at Freedom Books ever 11 

  tell you that the program wasn't gonna work? 12 

  A.  To the contrary. 13 

  Q.  What did they tell you? 14 

  A.  Well, the radio show, he was always promoting the successes 15 

  around the country. 16 

  Q.  Any -- any discussion about people having to pay money the 17 

  way you had to pay? 18 

  A.  No. 19 

           MR. IGNALL:  No further questions, your Honor. 20 
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  radio show speaking about, um, the fact that you don't have to 1 

  legally pay income tax; correct? 2 

  A.  Correct. 3 And aboutdur spe, umperiod of tiy infact thaheard him one, umrect. 

2 

  aboutate, umvery Tdasct thatid nottate, ate,iy idi shl him rect. 

2 

3 Noorrect. 

2 Inm, th,t thabelieved w ate umwas say speate, ateparticularrrect. 

3 

2 
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  you filed for a hearing.  True? 1 

  A.  Eventually, yes. 2 

  Q.  Eventually. 3 

           Um, and you were accompanied by Ms. Cynthia Neun at 4 

  that hearing.  Is that accurate? 5 

  A.  Yes. 6 

  Q.  Okay. 7 

              (Discussion between Mr. Cristalli and 8 

              Mr. Modafferi.) 9 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  May I approach the clerk, your Honor? 10 

           THE COURT:  You may. 11 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Thank you. 12 

              (Discussion between Mr. Cristalli and the 13 

              clerk.) 14 

              (Defendant Neun's Exhibit No. 2507, marked 15 

              for identification.) 16 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  May I approach the witness, your Honor? 17 

           THE COURT:  You may. 18 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 19 

  Q.  Mr. Diamond, I'm going to approach you with what appears to 20 

  be the transcripts of the collection due process hearing.  Could 21 
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  A.  (Reviewing document.) 1 

           It appears to be, yes. 2 

  Q.  Okay.  Take your time if you want to look through it. 3 

  A.  Yeah.  Let me see. 4 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Your Honor, I'd like to move for the 5 

  Defendant's Proposed Exhibit 25- -- 25, I believe -- 6 

           THE CLERK:  07. 7 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  -- 07 into evidence. 8 

           MR. IGNALL:  Your Honor -- 9 

 1       8416MR. IGNALL:  

 2       8416MR. CRISTALLIwere gonna play 

 3       8416MR. CRISTALLIdnd Et2.24

 4       8416MR. IGNALL:  y8 Td
( 4 m2ed
(Tj
tC0 Tt feels abot
wj
2.24 -2.4168 Td
( 45      8416MR. CRISTALLI:  -- 07 into evidence. )TI wouldbe. agreeable.24)Tjaj
2.24 -2.4168 Td
( 46      8416MR. IGNALL:  ydndndndndndndndndndndTjaj --Tj
tbetere proI burd
(5 )j
2(5 ).24 -2.4168 Td
( 47      8416MR. CRISTALLI:d
(8 )T ai 0 Tdadmit)Tj
tapTj
ndTj
taranscrip
weillnontbe. .24 -2.4168 Td
( 48      8416MR. CRISTALLI:admitted but
wTj
tapThwitll.24 0  can usewTj
taranscrip

2.24 -2.4168 Td
( 49      8416MR. IGNALL:  ydndndndndnor, I'd like to 2.2,anod)Tjaj --fine
2.24 -2.4168 Td
( 2       8416MR. CRISTALLI:  -- 07 ind,.2ymove for th(5 )brd
(ty purabot-ndnd,.24 )Tj0 Tdadmit)Tj
tapTj
nTd
dCRISTALLInitbstgir2examina)nonto l  caGTj
rn2.24uraboj
tmi4 0meo 2.2l  cyaransc)Tj0 Tdadmit)Tj
ta168 Td
( 2       8416MR. Tj
faTALre gonn.2l dmit) 3       8416MR. IGNALL:  Your Honor --  0 Td
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           THE COURT:  Any objection to 153 -- 1 

           MR. BOWERS:  I don't have any. 2 

           THE COURT:  -- the tape? 3 

           MR. BOWERS:  No. 4 

           THE COURT:  Tape of the hearing? 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  No.  I wanna play it. 6 

           THE COURT:  Okay. 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  No objection. 8 

           THE COURT:  153 is received. 9 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Thank you, your Honor. 10 

              (Government's Exhibit No. 153, received into 11 

              evidence.) 12 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  May I continue? 13 

           THE COURT:  You may. 14 

  BY MR. CRISTALLI: 15 

  Q.  Uh, now, Mr. Diamond, with regard to the due process 16 

  hearing, would it be an accurate statement if -- throughout the 17 

  hearing you have dialogue with the agent; correct? 18 

  A.  Yes. 19 

  Q.  And, um, your dialogue as it related to the agent is 20 

  basically requesting verification from him as to why or what 21 

  legal authority existed that supports their position, the IRS's 22 

  position, that you owe this tax; correct? 23 

  A.  Yes. 24 
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  agents that were investigating this particular case; correct? 1 

  A.  Yes. 2 

  Q.  Uh, at any particular time did anyone from that 3 

  investigation advise you that other police officers in different 4 

  jurisdictions, I believe, i.e., Miami or Florida, have actually 5 

  been prosecuted and convicted for not, uh, filing proper 1040 6 

  returns?  Do you recall that? 7 

  A.  I don't recall that specific information offhand.  It may 8 

  have occurred. 9 

  Q.  So you don't recall any agent basically tellin' you that if 10 

  you don't live up to your responsibility in terms of paying your 11 
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  Q.  Okay. 1 

  A.  -- in his promotion of his program, yes. 2 

  Q.  Did the seminars and -- and the ongoing nature of the 3 

  seminars suggest the same thing to you? 4 

  A.  Well, he held seminars all the time. 5 

  Q.  Right. 6 

           And did you rely on the fact that those were widely 7 
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  that correct? 1 

  A.  Correct. 2 

  Q.  Throughout the book, uh, I show how the IRS has seized money 3 

  from me under various circumstances.  As a matter of fact, in 4 

  here I think there's a letter -- 5 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  Is this the book you purchased?  Because there are different 2 

  editions. 3 

  A.  The title's the same.  I'm not sure that -- 4 

  Q.  Okay. 5 

  A.  -- the cover's the same. 6 

  Q.  Okay.  Now, can I -- in this edition -- in my earlier 7 

  editions, as in this edition, there is no -- 8 

           THE COURT:  Mr. Schiff, you cannot -- 9 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right. 10 

           THE COURT:  -- testify0athe same. 
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  but you did find that -- that the Code provided liability with 1 

  respect to Sections 4401, 5005, 5703 which related to wagering, 2 

  alcohol, and tobacco taxes, did you verify that? 3 

  A.  Yes.  Those direct taxes, yes. 4 

  Q.  Okay.  So you verified that. 5 

           Now, just skipping down a little bit to, uh, 6 

  paragraphs, uh -- paragraph 6, you cited that you believe that 7 

  the zero return was a valid return and you cited U.S. v. Long, 8 

  U.S. v. Kimball -- those are two Ninth Circuit decisions -- 9 

  U.S. v. Moore, which is a Seventh Circuit decision, and Cross v. 10 

  U.S., which is a decision of the Bankruptcy Court right here in 11 

  Las Vegas.  Did you -- did you rely on those decisions as 12 

  indicating that this was a valid return? 13 

  A.  I believe I looked up those -- 14 

  Q.  Okay. 15 

  A.  -- first two citations -- 16 

  Q.  Now -- 17 

  A.  -- because they were -- 18 

  Q.  -- in paragraph 7, however, when you wrote, "It should also 19 

  be noted that ... income according to The Supreme Court's 20 

  definition of income" -- and then you said -- "(See Note 1), ... 21 

  in Merchant's Loan & Trust Co." -- you -- you quoted the Supreme 22 

  Court as saying -- "The word (income) must be given the same 23 

  meaning in all of the Income Tax Acts of Congress that was given 24 

  to it" --25 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  Did you believe -- 2 
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  number of other cases which you believed would have supported 1 

  your position that income is a corporate profit? 2 

  A.  (Reviewing document.) 3 

              (Discussion between Mr. Cristalli and 4 

              Mr. Schiff.) 5 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 6 

  Q.  Okay.  Now -- I know we're gonna hear the tape.  Let me have 7 

  it.  I won't take too much time because -- well, we did bring up 8 

  the collection due process hearing. 9 

           Matt, do you happen to recall what the purpose of a 10 

  collection due process hearing was? 11 

  A.  What the purpose of it was? 12 

  Q.  Yes. 13 

  A.  Yes, to challenge the IRS's claims against my -- 14 

  Q.  Pardon me?  I didn't hear that. 15 

  A.  To challenge the IRS's claims against me. 16 

  Q.  Right.  Um, excuse me. 17 

           In other words, did you see this book over at 18 

  Freedom -- Freedom Books, The Power to Destroy? 19 

  A.  I -- I've never seen that book. 20 

  Q.  You didn't purchase the book.  Okay. 21 

           Um, so -- but -- so you went to the collection due 22 
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  "You haven't shown me one supporting document"? 1 

  A.  Yes. 2 

  QQ
B02 74r,t's why you appealed? 3 

  A.  Yes. 4 

           MR. SCHIFF:  No further questions. 5 

           THE COURT:  Government? 6 

           MR. IGNALL:  No redirect, your Honor. 7 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Nothing, your Honor. 8 

           MR. BOWERS:  Nothing, Judge.  Thank you. 9 

           THE COURT:  The witness is excused. 10 

           MR. IGNALL:  Thank you, your Honor. 11 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Thank you, your Honor. 12 

           THE COURT:  We'll be in recess for74re noon hour. 13 

  We'll resume at 1:30.  Standard instruction applies. 14 

              (Jury leaves74re courtroom at 12:14 p.m.) 15 

              (lunch recess, 12:14 p.m. to 1:34 p.m.) 16 

           THE CLERK:  All rise. 17 

           THE COURT:  Jury is coming in. 18 

           Can you bring your next witness in, please? 19 

              (Jacqueline M. Eller takes74re witness 20 

              stand.) 21 

              (Pause in 4re proceedings.) 22 

           THE CLERK:  Ready? 23 

           THE COURT:  Yep. 24 

           THE CLERK:  Okay.  Come on in.25 
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              (Jury enters the courtroom at 1:36 p.m.) 1 

           THE COURT:  Please be seated. 2 

           Will counsel stipulate to the presence of the jury? 3 

           MR. BOWERS:  Yes, your Honor. 4 
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  A.  -- I started filing what they called the zero returns. 1 

  Q.  How did you find out about Mr. Schiff's program? 
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  BY MR. IGNALL: 1 

  Q.  And it's a big courtroom, so it's good to make sure the 2 

  jurors and everyone else here can hear everything. 3 

           Uh, I'm sorry.  You said you called the telephone 4 

  number -he telephone 
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  first visit, but I don't know for sure that I bought the, um, 1 

  uh, Federal Mafia, I believe is the name of it. 2 

  Q.  All right.  How much money did you spend on your first trip 3 

  to Freedom Books? 4 

  A.  I think it wa5eohw 65  fo75 I llarsit. 

  Q.Y youa dithasonampointid yoI boughT th, Federal Mafks? 

  A.Yes A.  I think it wae thar firstimeit. 
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  you want me to describe what's on it? 1 

  Q.  No. 2 

           Is that the form that you filled out and sent into the 3 

  IRS? 4 

  A.  Yes. 5 

           MR. IGNALL:  At this point, the Government moves into 6 

  evidence Exhibit 112. 7 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  No objection. 8 

           MR. SCHIFF:  No objection. 9 

           MR. BOWERS:  Court's indulgence just a moment, your 10 
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  that year? 1 

  A.  Yes, I did. 2 

  Q.  Why did you write down zero on line 7? 3 

  A.  Because according to the program, I was taught to believe 4 

  that wages uo92 .24 0w0ole;  thatincome4 0wI was o, uam,uh,e 

 applyt toccoporaiteyeandinsd. 

  Q. All riughQ. Ddid youhaeveany4 0wges ithheld fromd yor salary. 

 durding199 7? 

  A. I'm --, I--, I prb0olyI did., Imeans, I on't4 rmember? 

 ievnI--, 04 

  Q. Ifd you--,maybe ifd youcan turng to thenext pwageand see ifd 14 

  thatrefreshges yor recollection.d 24 

  A. Oh,e prb0olyImy W-2's ao92huo9?  (Reviewdingdocuments.)d 34 

          OkayA.  Yes, the 0wI ithheld iso on line54.d 44 

  Q. All riughQ. Ddid youseek atrefund of  tha?d 54 

  A. Nos, Inievry didget atrefund.d 64 

  Q. Ddid youseek atrefund?d 74 

  A.  Ye.d 84 

  Q. All riughQ. And  did youdo  that onthise 0wIreturnghuo9?  94 

  A.  Ye.d 

  Q. All riughQ. And wtha's  thedaite that youfilednthise 0wI 

 return?  

          MR. SCHIFF:.  yor Honors, theans uo [sic]I was didshg return?   q u e s 4 1 4   - 2 . 2 - - i d s h g  r e t u r n ?   
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  question is:  Did you ever get a refund for your 1997 taxes 1 

  withheld? 2 

  A.  No, I did not. 3 

  Q.  Did you ever get any correspondence from the IRS about this 4 

  tax return? 5 
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  BY MR. IGNALL: 1 

  Q.  If you could just read the first, uh, sentence to us. 2 

  A.  "We have determined that the information you sent is 3 

  frivolous and your position has no basis in law." 4 

  Q.  All right.  If you could turn your attention to Exhibit 114, 5 

  do you recognize that document? 6 

  A.  Yes. 7 

  Q.  What is Exhibit 114? 8 
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  A.  Yes.  I believe I took everything I ever received in there. 1 

  Q.  And when you first, uh, went into Freedom Books to pick up 2 

  materials to fill out that first zero return, did anyone tell 3 

  you that you were gonna get correspondence like this from the 4 

  IRS? 5 

  A.  No.  I thought I was gonna receive checks back and 6 

  everything after that was gonna be clear sailing. 7 

  Q.  All right.  When you got these letters and you brought them 8 

  into Freedom Books, did you talk to anyone at Freedom Books? 9 

  A.  Definitely. 10 

  Q.  Do you remember who you spoke to? 11 

  A.  Um, no, I don't remember because that was early on.  And I 12 

  think a lot of the people that were working there dropped off as 13 

  the years went by.  Um, I may have met Cynthia Neun that day. 14 

  I'm not sure. 15 

  Q.  All right.  When you went in with the letters -- did you go 16 

  in more than once with letters you got from the IRS? 17 

  A.  Say that again. 18 

  Q.  Did you go in more than one time with letters that you'd -- 19 

  A.  Yes. 20 

  Q.  -- received? 21 

  A.  Yes.  Many times. 22 

  Q.  Did you ever -- what did the Freedom Books employees do the 23 

  first time you went in with letters from the IRS? 24 

  A.  Well, I was really upset because this letter indicated I had25 
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  Q.  On what date? 1 

  A.  October 27, '99. 2 5p
10.98 0 0 10.98 545OctTGNALL:  United St Ons movns Exhibit7445 intor 27, '99. 2 5p
73.98 0 0evidence  Q.this timeer 27, '99. 2 5p
10.98 0 0 10.98 545OctCRISTALLI:  No objectioner 27, '99. 2 5p
10.98 0 0 10.98 545OctBOWERS:  None, your Honorer 27, '99. 2 5p
73.98 0 0 10.98 545OctSCHIFF:  No objectioner 27, '99. 2 5p
10.98 0 0 10.98 54THE COURT:  445 is26.ceiveder 27, '99. 
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           MR. SCHIFF:  I object.  It's not a complete document. 1 

           THE COURT:  I heard your objection. 2 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Yeah.  Are they gonna put the whole 3 

  document in? 4 

           THE COURT:  117 is received. 5 

              (Government's Exhibit No. 117, received into 6 

              evidence.) 7 
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  Exhibit 116 briefly. 1 

  A.  (Complies.) 2 

  Q.  Do you recognize Exhibit 116? 3 

  A.  (Reviewing document.) 4 



 2
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  frivolous, um -- from the IRS stating that my return was 1 

  frivolous for -- 2 
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  Q.  Now, what's the date of this letter? 
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  Q.  Now, did you sign this document? 1 

  A.  Yes. 2 
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           MR. CRISTALLI:  Give us some time -- could we have a 1 

  time frame on that, the first hearing? 2 

           THE WITNESS:  What -- what -- was that a question to 3 

  me? 4 

           MR. IGNALL:  I may be able to clarify that. 5 
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  day or anything. 1 

  Q.  Did you end up doing anything in response to getting this 2 

  letter? 3 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Uh, is there a copy of the hearing in here 4 

  also? 5 

           THE WITNESS:  You're asking me -- 6 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 7 

  Q.  Did you take any action after getting this letter, 8 

  Ms. Eller? 9 

  A.  What I was looking for here was to see if it requested any 10 

  action because I'm sure I did what I was told to do at Freedom 11 

  Books. 12 

  Q.  If I could turn your attention to Exhibit 126 and ask you: 13 

  Does that refresh your recollection as to whether you took any 14 

  action after your IRS hearing? 15 

  A.  You want me to say what this is? 16 

  Q.  Does that refresh your recollection as to whether you took 17 

  any action? 18 

  A.  See, I don't remember what -- 19 

           MR. BOWERS:  Your Honor -- 20 

           THE WITNESS:  -- followed what -- 21 

           MR. BOWERS:  -- I have an objection -- 22 

           THE WITNESS:  -- but yes. 23 

           MR. BOWERS:  -- regarding this exhibit.  So I don't -- 24 

  I don't have an objection to the pending question.  But I would25 
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  A.  -- when I -- I stopped going in there -- 1 

  Q.  All right. 2 

  A.  -- so... 3 

  Q.  Let me back up then. 4 

           Did you ever have a hearing here in the federal 5 

  courthouse -- 6 

  A.  Yes. 7 

  Q.  -- about your tax situation? 8 

  A.  Yes. 9 

  Q.  Do you remember roughly when that was? 10 

  A.  That's what I'm havin' trouble remembering.  Um, I'm looking 11 

  for a date on here.  If this was written November 4th, 2002, I 12 

  presume it was maybe a month or so before that. 13 

  Q.  All right. 14 

  A.  But I'm just guessing. 15 

  Q.  When you -- but at some point you got notice that there was 16 

  gonna be a hearing here in the federal court? 17 

  A.  Yes. 18 

  Q.  Did you talk to anyone about that hearing before you came to 19 

  the hearing? 20 

  A.  Say that again, please. 21 

  Q.  Did you speak to anyone about that hearing before coming? 22 

  A.  Oh, at -- yeah, because when I filed for -- when I filed 23 

  with the District Court, the -- the big -- the big appeal or 24 

  whatever it was, I was, like, thinkin' I've got to stop this; I25 
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           MR. SCHIFF:  What was the question? 1 

           THE COURT:  Did he make any suggestions? 2 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Yes. 3 

           THE WITNESS:  He gave me ideas that I should remember 4 

  to point out and I wrote them down like in, um, outline style. 5 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 6 

  Q.  And did you bring those with you to court? 7 

  A.  Yes. 8 

  Q.  Who, if anyone, accompanied you to this court hearing? 9 

  A.  Just Mr. Schiff. 10 

  Q.  And -- 11 

  A.  Actually, Cynthia wanted to, I believ. I, -2.usciAdf ao thr- 20 

 engagremint thatday. ISto ten2.uscmet us, ous id wten2iat was 30 

 overf. 41 

  Q. Now, let's gou towthathappentedins the hearinf. 50 

          Ddid youraiske anyofs thske rgueminas that Mr. Schif. 61 

 iAdfgiven2 youins the court hearing? 70 

  A. I go-2.o upsent thatday wten2 the courtstarnted and thny adid 80 

 iat wasUnintedStatesyofsAmerica versus,mes that IjJust wanted td 91 

 disappearQ.  AndId remember maringoine sateemint thatId din'td 

  believtIdneedted tdpay taxesybecausvtId wasia wge earnber and 

  thattaxesywere due bye crporate earnrinsyore crporattion wttd 

 earnbnd -- 

  Q.  was Mr. Schif.ins the courroom wten2 youmades that rgueming? 

  A.  Yes 
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  Q.  All right. 1 

           MR
-43uoALL:  No further questions, your Honor 12

           MTHE COURT:  Thank you 13

           MCross-examination?14

           MR
-4CRISTALLI:  Thank you, your Honor 15

           MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMCROSS-EXAMINATION17
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  A.  I wish I wouldn't have had to have said a word and he could 1 

  have handled it -- 2 

  Q.  Right. 3 

  A.  -- yeah.  That's basically the way I did it all the way 4 

  through.  And I always felt guilty foo3t doin' my homea wkrd any 

bein' ablead tbeid good part ofll thprogramgh.But, likend say,ny 

everllyimend saiAnd caldn'doll isll ty say,nwell, you' albeiok way 

d anwe' alhelp youht. 

  Q.Ok wgh.  An  -a An  -a Ant That'ki Anofla64 occurringll tmen. 

  at I'm gettinglfrom you isll at everlbodyll at you associateany 

with Freedom Booksllriehad tassist you toll thbest ofll tirny 

abilitwgh.True?ny 

Agh.True.ny 

Qgh.  An  -a Anyou went toll isl  -first oflall, you went toly 

Agh.True.ny 3 4 

Agh.True.ny 
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  biased judiciary, which I state in here; is that correct? 1 

  A.  I -- I honestly didn't -- I honestly did not read enough of 2 

  it to have ever read that part.  There have been other parts of 3 

  the book that have been pointed out to me more recently that I 4 

  didn't read either. 5 

  Q.  But I never led you to believe that you just -- you fill 6 

  this out and nothing's gonna happen to you.  As a matter of 7 

  fact, when you filed -- 8 

           MR. IGNALL:  Objection, your Honor.  It's gonna be -- 9 

           THE COURT:  Sustained. 10 

           MR. IGNALL:  -- compound question.  There's another -- 11 

           THE COURT:  Testif3
.au      THE COURTaj
2.841 -2.268 n- 11 ndE CA yorighttif3
.au      THE CO3RTaj
2.841 -2.268 n- 11 

     Td
(11 ndE CI'm s thytif3
.au      THE CO5RTaj
2.841 -2.268 n- )Tj
-2.841 0Wart.  heree zero diturnhere; inotwart.  heree diturnhef3
.au      THE CO6 Td
(11 )Tj
2.841 -2.273re; isee en yo?ef3
.au      THE CO7RTaj
2.841 -2.268 n- Discussd qs gtw havMur Schiffhis of3
.au      THE CO8RTaj
2.841 -2.268 n- 11 
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  and claim for refund can not be considered 'frivolous' on any 1 

  basis - pursuant to Code Section 6702  For one thing there is no 2 

  statute that requires me to make a 'self-assessment.'" 3 

  Q.  What.  Hold it.  That's not what I have on mine. 4 

           THE COURT:  Well, that's what I have on mine. 5 

           Are you referring to another ex0 1a?. 

          MR. SCHIFF:.  Hold it. 118t I hav,e is that1a?. 

           THE COURT:  That's118t. Shet'sreadringout ofs118t. 

          MR. SCHIFF:.  Well,may be--,may beothy gnotmisplacedt. 

 BY MR. SCHIFF:. 04 

  Q. All righit. Buat1ae--, 14 

           THE COURT:  that1se yor quesctio?, 24 

 BY MR. SCHIFF:. 34 

  Q. Okay..  Well,reads what yougno.. Didt you--, 44 

           THE COURT: Shet'sreadd it. Shesreadd i already., 54 

          MR. SCHIFF:. All righit. 64 

 BY MR. SCHIFF:. 74 

  Q. Doese that refeg tooth 'frivolou penalty,s what yo'Are 84 

 readringfrom?, 94 

 AQ. Ift I cotinuve o,d i talks about --, 

  Q.  Well,gto headt. 

 AQ. --,a penaltyt. 

  Q. Ccotinuve ot. 

 AQ. "Tther foe howd canIt be har8414 0 Td
204 
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  to do at all?" 1 

  Q.  So there's something there about you might be subject to a 2 

  penalty ifnfilehinis1.6turn.to a 2 
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           MR. SCHIFF:  Pardon me? 1 

           THE COURT:  She didn't tell them what to write.  That's 2 

  the answer. 3 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 4 

  Q.  So you're saying that my employee just made up what happened 5 

  at your collection due process hearing without you telling her 6 

  what actually occurred? 7 

  A.  I never went to a hearing by myself and I never had to make 8 

  a report to Freedom Books. 9 

  Q.  Well, you went, I think -- was Cindy with you but they 10 

  wouldn't let her talk? 11 

  A.  The first time. 
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           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 1 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 2 

  Q.  Now, would you say that the basis of my theor       eIYd-: 

 anld youd-:how manyud-:how manyuzero4 rturns dild youfile?: 

 Five?: 

 AQ. Um, about   eIYmanyy. 

  Q.  Okay. 

 AQ. I don'IYd-: 

  Q.  n everyYd-: 

 AQ. d-:know for surey. 02 

  Q. d-:ones of myzero4 rturns,d youclaimedy thre     no law   eIY 12 

 maded youliable for income tax anldno law   eIYrequireld youtoY 22 

 psayincome taxQ. Dild youmake   eIYclaim?Y 32 

 AQ. Yesy. 42 

 QQ. Dild thegovernment ever show  youa law   eIYrequireld youtoY 52 

 psayincome taxeis r32 42 

 Td
(2.2The  Q. the  Q.   eIYclaim?Y )Tj
-78414 0 Td
(02 )Tj
28414 -2.2In anyu  Qd
( doculd tswould youyhegoverd thxei,zero4the  Q.   eIYclaim?Y )Tj
-88414 0 Td
(32 )Tj
28414 -2.2The  negoveQ.   eIYclaim?Y 42 02  IRS negovesaid, "th thIyin8 T, Jackie2.2It's   eIYclaim?Y 12  AQ. Yesy. 22 1estionuires r3Iyi  eIYclaim?Y 32 
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           THE COURT:  She answered the question. 1 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 2 

  Q.  -- did the IRS -- 3 

           THE COURT:  She answered the question. 4 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 5 

           THE COURT:  Move on. 6 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 7 

  Q.  Do you still owe them -- all right.  Do you -- is it my 8 

  understanding that you still owe the IRS some money? 9 
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  Q.  Okay.  And, uh, there -- there was nothing else involved 1 

  with that that we haven't talked about already today; right?  No 2 

  other course of action that you haven't discussed? 3 

  A.  I don't know what you mean.  That sounds like a huge black 4 

  hole. 5 

  Q.  All right. 6 

  A.  What do you mean there's nothing else we didTd
(2 )Tj
2a 746adkg 
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           Do you recall driving there with Mr. Cohen? 1 
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  Q.  Okay.  So -- 1 

  A.  -- in different capacities -- 2 

  Q.  Did he -- I'm sorry. 3 

  A.  -- whatever their position was in the office and me as -- as 4 

  a little bitty part of it. 5 

  Q.  So he never said or did anything that led you to believe to 6 

  the contrary; is that right?lnt led you to beliemTo make sure I know2.24 .268 answer ne, tha6  ontrary; is that8eve to Q 
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                         DIRECT EXAMINATION 1 

  BY MR. NEIMAN: 2 

  Q.  Good afternoon, Ms. Branigan. 3 
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  A.  No. 1 

  Q.  What did you do when you went into the store? 2 

  A.  I looked at the book shelves -- 3 

  Q.  Well -- 4 

  A.  -- and I found his book.  His secretary, LindW nh4/.
a,T5 --   Q.  Wel9No. 
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  packages. 1 

  Q.  And was everything sold separately or was it for free? 2 
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  Q.  All right.  What advice did The Federal Mafia discuss with 1 

  regards to W-4's? 2 

  A.  Filing an exempt. 3 

  Q.  What does it mean to file an exempt W-4? 4 

  A.  Where you fill in on the line "exempt" as opposed to filling 5 



 





 2



 2
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  1997? 1 

  A.  Yes. 2 

  Q.  All right.  If we could look at line 7 of the return.  What 3 

  is the amount you put in there? 4 

  A.  Zero. 5 
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  A.  I don't believe this was.  I think this was like a separate 1 

  handout that when you bought the book you got the letter. 2 
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              (Government's Exhibit No. 84, received into 1 

              evidence.) 2 

           MR. NEIMAN:  If we could show just Government's 3 

  Exhibit 84. 4 

              (Document displayed in open court.) 5 

  BY MR. NEIMAN: 6 

  Q.  What type of response is Government's Exhibit 84? 7 

  A.  It's entitled "Notice of Deficiency." 8 

  Q.  And who is it addressed to? 9 

  A.  To me and my husband. 10 

  Q.  And what is the date, if you see the date, up in the top 11 

  right-hand corner or... 12 

  A.  Looks like November 9, 1999. 13 

  Q.  If I could -- did you -- this letter, I believe, is 14 

  assessing a tax in the amount of $6,000, is it not? 15 

  A.  Where is that? 16 

  Q.  If you look -- 17 

  A.  Oh. 18 

  Q.  -- on your screen, it may be able to direct you to it as 19 

  well.  For year '97. 20 

  A.  It appears to be. 21 

  Q.  Okay.  Did you pay that $6,000 -- 22 

  A.  No. 23 

  Q.  -- immediately upon receiving this letter? 24 

  A.  No.25 
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  BY MR. NEIMAN: 1 

  Qo4a
 0 1here come a time when 1he IRS trie0 1o collect 1hat 1ax 2 

  1hat was owed, $8,000 for year '97? 3 
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  and direct callers? 1 
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  Q.  Did you charge for the preparation of these zero returns? 1 

  A.  Just what the office charged as a fee. 2 

  Q.  What was the fee? 3 

  A.  I think the fee was $50 at the time. 4 
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  A.  Yes. 1 

  Q.  Approximately how many telephone calls would you receive -- 2 

  or did you answer a day? 3 

  A.  A lot. 4 
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  your paycheck -- 1 

  A.  No. 2 

  Q.  -- or out of your envelope? 3 

  A.  No. 4 

  Q.  Did you receive a W-2? 5 

  A.  No. 6 

  Q.  Did you ever have any problems getting paid? 7 

  A.  I can only recall one hiccup and that was just it took a 8 

  couple of days. 9 

  Q.  And you eventually were compensated? 10 

  A.  Yes. 11 

  Q.  If I could, uh, change gears a bit. 12 

           Do you know what P.I.L.L. is? 13 

  A.  I believe it was an offshore trust -- 14 

  Q.  Did you -- 15 

  A.  -- or some kind of banking thing. 16 

  Q.  Did you use P.I.L.L.? 17 

  A.  No. 18 

  Q.  Do you know of anyone in the office who used P.I.L.L.? 19 

  A.  Irwin may have. 20 

  Q.  Why do you say he may have? 21 

  A.  He had a -- like a flyer for it and said anyone who is 22 

  interested just give them this. 23 

  Q.  When did you leave Freedom Books? 24 

  A.  It was early 2000.25 
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  Honor. 1 

           THE COURT:  Mr. -- who is going next? 2 

           MR. BOWERS:  I have no questions for this witness, your 3 

  Honor. 4 

           THE COURT:  You have no questions? 5 

           MR. BOWERS:  I have no questions -- 6 

           THE COURT:  Okay. 7 
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  A.  No. 1 

  Q.  You didn't hear one complaint? 2 

  A.  No, not -- 3 

  Q.  But we didn't screen our calls? 4 

           THE COURT:  Wait a minute.  Let her finisher her 5 

  answer. 6 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I'm sorry. 7 

           THE COURT:  What was the answer? 8 

           THE WITNESS:  No, not on the radio. 9 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 10 

  Q.  Did, um -- did you hear me call the U.S. Attorney's Office? 11 

  A.  Yes. 12 

  Q.  You did hear me? 13 

  A.  Yes, I did. 14 

  Q.  And what happened when I called the U.S. Attorney's Office? 15 

  A.  They hung up on you. 16 

  Q.  They hung up on me. 17 

           Do you recall me saying -- do you recall what I said at 18 

  the U.S. Attorney? 19 

  A.  Not right off the top of my head, no. 20 

  Q.  Okay.  Did you hear me call the IRS office? 21 

  A.  Yes. 22 

  Q.  And what did they do when I called? 23 

  A.  They hung up on you. 24 

  Q.  They hung up on me too.25 
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  was on with me? 1 

  A.  Yes. 2 

  Q.  Do you recall any of the comments he would continually make 3 

  on this subject? 4 

  A.  Not right now, no. 5 

  Q.  Okay.  So you went down to Freedom Books and you bought The 6 

  Federal Mafia. 7 

  A.  Yes. 8 

  Q.  And you read it? 9 

  A.  Yes. 10 

  Q.  And, based upon what you read, the first q.  So you went downdg
(8 )6.  0 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  Well -- 2 

           THE COURT:  The answer is no. 3 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 4 

  Q.  -- summarizing that, did it warn people that there was 5 

  danger to claim exempt? 6 

  A.  I don't recall.  I haven't read the whole thing yet. 7 

  Q.  Okay.  So I didn't persuade you, it was the law that 8 

  persuaded you to claim exempt -- that led you to believe you can 9 

  claim exempt? 10 

  A.  I believed -- 11 

  Q.  Okay. 12 

  A.  -- what you said -- 13 

  Q.  Okay. 14 

  A.  -- what Feituozhat Fansdreasearchhatwithwhat you said   I bTj
-2.841 0 Td
(145)Tj
2.841 -2.268 Td
(  Qelieved -- )Tj
-2.841 0 Td
(116)Tj
2.841 -2.273 Td
(  Q.  Okay. )Tj
-2.841 0 Td
(127)Tj
2.841 -2.268 Td
(  A.  -- wou r buoz )Tj
-2.841 0 Td
(128)Tj
2.841 -2.268 Td
(  Q.  ONow,you toestifid -- )nsdrit's verypersceptive  OVerypfew129

  Qeople tremembr t- wou said -he learievr editions ofThe aFederal12 

  AMafiadidn't prefr to cgettng yaprefund 12 

  A.  -No 12 

  Q.  Oknlythe lawtvr editions 12 

  Q.  -Yes 12 
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  Court -- 1 

           THE COURT:  It is. 2 

           MR. NEIMAN:  -- as to what the law is. 3 

           THE COURT:  Sustained. 4 

           MR. SCHIFF:  That -- that -- that's a court decision, 5 

  not necessarily the law. 6 

           THE COURT:  Wrong. 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 8 

           THE COURT:  Sustained. 9 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 10 

  Q.  In any case, without citing any decisions, does that try to 11 

  establish that fact that income in the ordinary sense is not 12 

  exactly income in the tax sense. 13 

           THE COURT:  Well, the question was would looking at 14 

  that refresh her recollection. 15 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Yeah. 16 

           THE COURT:  That was the question. 17 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 18 

  Q.  Does that rec- -- 19 

           THE COURT:  That is the one that is pending. 20 

           Does looking at that refresh your recollection? 21 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Well, there's a number of cases cited 22 

  there, your Honor.  I'm sorry.  All right. 23 

           THE COURT:  You had a question pending.  And you were 24 

  using this book to refresh her recollection.25 
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  my attachment or write one on your own?  What would have been 1 

  easier? 2 

           MR. NEIMAN:  Objection.  Asked and answered. 3 

           THE COURT:  Sustained. 4 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I'm asking her -- I didn't -- I never 5 

  asked her that question before. 6 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 
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           The purpose -- 1 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 2 

  Q.  Carol, you -- 3 

           THE COURT:  -- the purpose of the Government 4 

  bringing -- 
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  Q.  To this day, do you believe that I believe everything I 1 

  wrote in these books? 2 

           MR. NEIMAN:  I object to speculation. 3 

           THE COURT:  Sustained.  Improper. 4 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 5 

  Q.  Have you formed an opinion concerning -- 6 

           THE COURT:  Improper.  She is not allowed to testify as 7 

  to her opinion of for0s68 Jcn9beper. 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 

  QButhath  Hagivenave yno grounds
(  ou believe that I belieF: )Tj
841.24 0 Td0
(5 )Tj841.24 -2.268 Td
people are.64quirlowed paw5t I belie I belieF: 
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           MR. BOWERS:  May we neatly stack our materials like 1   last week? 2            THE COURT:  Yes. 3            MR. BOWERS:  Thank you, your Honor. 4            MR. CRISTALLI:  No, your Honor. 5Tj
tn ate- Td
(4 )Tj
n atetn 18 Td
hNTALI:  Nthing from the Governmento, your Honor.            THE COURT: All right.  We're in4 rcess until Mondayr.              (Proceedings adjyouned at 4:38 p.m.).                               --oOo--.  I hereb8S4--. 


